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Invitation to Tender for Research and Consultancy Services

R1217b: Understanding engagement and communications with council tenants in high rise buildings 
London Councils is committed to fighting for more resources for London and getting the best possible deal for London’s 33 councils. We lobby for local governance for London boroughs, promoting their leadership of local communities and services and argue for the tools necessary for them to do that job. We also act as a catalyst for effective sharing of practice, knowledge, information and services between boroughs.
The Policy and Public Affairs (PaPA) directorate has four strategic themes:

· Devolution – Devolution to our boroughs ensures better results for Londoners;

· Partnership – Our partnership expertise delivers local feel and London scale; so driving innovation and efficiency;

· Democracy and trust – clear accountability and real engagement with Londoners happens best at borough level. London boroughs aim to be every Londoner’s first choice for a fair hearing and a fair deal; and

· Resources and risks – London boroughs have the confidence and talent to take on challenges that others are too remote to handle.

Robust evidence and innovative thinking is critical to our success in achieving the objectives set out above.
London Councils is commissioning this work following discussions with Communication leads from all the London boroughs and has support from London Housing Directors.
R1217b: Understanding engagement and communications with council tenants in high rise buildings 
London Councils is seeking to commission a survey of council tenants who reside in high rise buildings [tower blocks specifically] to find out how they gain information about where they live and which communications methods they use both generally and in relation to information from their council.

Background

In the aftermath of the Grenfell Tower fire, central government brought the question of local government engagement and communication with high rise tenants into the spotlight. This is highlighted in the Hackitt review, when the call for evidences asks if ‘there is an effective means for tenants and other residents to raise concerns.’
Local authorities in London carry out surveys of their residents to capture information which include tenant surveys, satisfaction surveys and resident surveys. However, none of the 32 boroughs specifically survey high rise tenants, and have no specific information on how this group interacts with their council, or generally consumes information. 
It is clear a knowledge gap exists which is to be addressed through commissioning a survey of this specific segment of social housing tenants. By commissioning this research, London Councils will be able to gain baseline information which would:

· Enable boroughs to identify if there is an issue, and understand the scale and nature of the problem.

· Provide a response to address these issues.

Therefore, this survey will enable London Councils to support its member local authorities and develop effective policy positions to address perceived issues. It will also allow local authorities to understand better how to tailor their engagement and communications to this audience of which there is little understanding. It will allow boroughs to start to create specific strategies using the most appropriate media channels to contact these residents in the future, and ensure residents feel fully informed.
Research Objectives

The objective of this research is to better understand the media consumption of tenants in high rise accommodation. Assumptions are made regarding their communications preferences and how they access information by including them in the wider social tenants category. Through this research, it is hoped London local authorities will be able to target their communications explicitly to this specific audience in the way that is most helpful to them. 

London Councils would want to explore how these tenants in general receive information and what methods they use to communicate with their councils. Suggested questions could include: 

· How do you get information about your estate and local happenings?

· How do you prefer to receive information?

· Do you watch videos showing you how to do things?

· Please give some examples of the type of newsletters (online or offline) you read.

· Do you use social media? If so, what for?

· How many hours a week do you spend on the internet? What is the main reason you use the internet?

We would also want to ask specific questions regarding communicating with their council:

· Do you trust your local authority to give you advice?

· How does your council currently contact you? 

· Have you ever raised a complaint or issue about your housing with the council? How did you find their response? Was it timely? Did they fix the issue? 

· What does your council contact you about? Is it relevant? Is it easy to understand? Too much or too little?

· How would you rate the quality of service you receive from your council?

· How do you want to be communicated with in an emergency and in a non-emergency?

· Do you know what these words that the council use frequently mean: (insert applicable)
These are suggestions and we would welcome other ideas from bidders that they think it would be useful to explore in the context of this research. Questions that can be benchmarked e.g. in comparison to social tenants in general may be also helpful.

Methodology

The suggested approach is face-to-face surveys either via door-knocking residents living within tower blocks on estates, or possibly through on street surveys in the vicinity of tower blocks (i.e. on or near estates), which may be more cost-effective. Telephone interviewing may be an option if face-to-face proves prohibitively expensive but it is unclear how many respondents would be willing to discuss their council over the phone and there may be issues regarding having English as a second language amongst this group. Ideally we would like to go with a face-to-face approach where possible. 
To gain a pan-London perspective, we will need to interview residents from across as many boroughs as possible. However some boroughs have more high-rise buildings than others, so a range of these boroughs will need to be targeted in the sampling framework. London Councils may be able to provide to the successful bidder guidance around boroughs with council estates that include high-rise buildings to help with sampling.

We would expect a sample size of at least 1,000 residents to allow robust analysis by relevant sub groups, such as:

· Standard demographics.

· Whether the housing is managed in-house by the council or outsourced to ALMOs etc.

· Scale of the estate – e.g. is it a single tower block, or a group of two or more?

· Inner and outer London – borough of residence should be recorded.

Bidders can provide a menu of costs for sample sizes over 1,000 where they feel this will provide added value to analysis of the proposed subgroups. 
Bidders must indicate in detail how they would undertake this work including sampling, maximising response rates, potential topics for focus groups and the approach they would take to achieve the outcomes required. 

Qualitative research

We are interested in potentially following up the quantitative research with focus groups to explore further certain aspects of the relationship between these tenants and communications with their councils. These aspects would include for example: creating communications material as part of the group activity, reading material from local authorities and ALMOs and discussing its impact, and wider questions regarding building trust between residents of high rise buildings and the local authority. Bidders should cost the focus groups (2-4 max) as optional, with suggestions of a potential sample approach and a brief outline of topics they could cover. We would envisage the groups taking place once leads have been collected from the survey.
We require the following outputs from the project: 
· Weekly progress updates (by phone or email).

· Full data tables presented in draft, with the opportunity for London Councils to comment.

· Topline/marked up questionnaire.
· Final data tables in excel and PDF.

· Final report including write-up of qualitative findings if commissioned.
· Cost for optional presentation of results.
Project Costs and Timetable

Costs should be clearly presented and be inclusive of all fees, direct and indirect costs, expenses but exclusive of VAT. An example of a clear cost structure is provided in Annex 2. You should indicate based on the timings below how you would envisage the project progressing based on your suggested methodology. 

Bidders should be aware that due to local elections in London, purdah will take effect from mid-March 2018. It is therefore necessary that all fieldwork is completed before this period. The timetable below reflects this requirement.
	Activity
	Date

	Deadline for receiving quote
	3pm, 16 January 2018

	Contractors informed of outcome
	w/c 22 January 2018

	Contract awarded
	w/c 22 January 2018

	Inception meeting
	w/c 22 January 2018

	Survey development/setup
	by early February 2018

	Fieldwork
	by w/c 5 March 2018

	Draft data provided
	w/c 12 March 2018

	Final data tables/topline
	w/c 19 March 2018

	Final report
	w/c 9 April 2018


Reporting Procedures and Project Management

The project manager for this research is Rhiannon Jones, Rhiannon.Jones@londoncouncils.gov.uk or 020 7934 9628. 

For queries relating to the procurement process or this specification please contact Sorcha Rooney, Principle Procurement Policy Analyst via Sorcha.Rooney@londoncouncils.gov.uk. 
London Councils expects to comment on research tools (e.g. questionnaires and/or topic guides) and this should be reflected in your cost and time and general liaison with London Councils.
Tender Requirements 

Bidders should provide the following information in their quote:
a. The size and nature of your organisation and your experience of directly relevant research studies.
b. Proposed methodology and approach to analysis – including size and composition of any samples and justification for approach.
c. An outline of all outputs from the project.
d. Arrangements for project management, reporting and quality control.
e. Research timetable with key milestones, including any risks that may affect the timing or delivery of outputs and contingencies.
f. Clear structure of charges including day/hour rates, time spent on tasks, expenses. VAT will be paid at the applicable rate (an example of a clear cost structure is given in annex 2).
We will evaluate your response against the evaluation criteria given below.

60/40: 60% quality and 40% cost

	Evaluation criteria – Quality [60% of the total]
	Weighting [100%]

	Understanding of the aims and objectives of the research, the policy context and key issues and importance of the findings for lobbying purposes; specifically:

· Expert knowledge and understanding of London regional and local government and the particular responsibilities and challenges in relation to managing housing and council housing in London in particular.
· A sensitive awareness of the issues – explicit and implicit – for London boroughs following the Grenfell tragedy and the implications for how this may affect trust in councils amongst their social housing tenants.

· Understanding of the broad range of issues that would be of interest to council communications teams across London boroughs following Grenfell.

· An awareness of and sensitivity to the political issues being raised by central government around local authorities’ relationships with their tenants in the wake of Grenfell.
	25%

	Experience of undertaking similar projects, examples to include:

· Experience of research in the social housing sector, ideally in London boroughs.
· Experience of undertaking similar projects including face to face on-street and in-home/telephone polling and council tenant research specifically in London (or at least in similar metropolitan areas with a large and diverse population and housing sectors).

· Experience of presenting complex research to communications and housing experts as well as local government officials and politicians (council and parliamentary).
	30%

	A clear methodology and approach that meets the research aims and objectives, including:

· A solid and cost effective methodological approach and sampling strategy across London housing sectors, to provide the relevant audience; as well as maximising response rates.

· A detailed, clear timetable for completing the project within the overall timescale outlined in this document.
	45%


Format of Quote Response

If you wish to apply, an electronic copy of your quote response with completed FOI and Equal Opportunities documents should be sent by email at tenders@londoncouncils.gov.uk quoting reference number R1217b to arrive by 3pm on 16th January 2018. Emails must be received before 3pm or they will be rejected.
If necessary, you may seek clarification on the procurement process or the specification by contacting Sorcha Rooney via the details above. 
Please note that London Councils is closed for the period between Christmas and the New Year, so queries will be answered from the 2nd of January 2018 onwards.
Enquiries will not be answered if received within 2 days of the date for submissions of quotes. Bidders should note that responses to each enquiry will be copied to all organisations bidding (though will not identify the originator of the enquiry) through the London Councils website.     
If you are aware that the submission of your quote may give rise to a potential conflict of interest, please inform the officer to whom you are making the application.

Full instructions to bidders are also provided in Annex One. Bidders are advised to read all instructions before submitting their quote.

Freedom of Information Act

You should be aware that the information you submit may be subject to a request for information. The provision of any information to external parties by London Councils is determined by statutory conditions provided for in the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Equality Opportunities

The successful contractor will be required to comply with London Councils’ Equal Opportunity Policy and bidders should complete the Equal Opportunities Questionnaire with their tender submission.
Terms and Conditions

Please see accompanying terms and conditions and confirm acceptance in your submission. These relate to:
· Intellectual Property rights; and 

· Data sharing and Data Processing. 

Bidders should be aware that if they fail to submit the documents requested they shall be disqualified from the evaluation process. Bidders should therefore ensure they enclose the following when emailing their bids to the address provided above:
· Agree to our Terms and Conditions (signing of these is required on appointment).
· Completed Equality Questionnaire.
· Signed FOI schedule.
· A clear response which meets and addresses all aspects of the specification evaluation criteria.
Annex One: Instructions to bidders

1. Tender Submissions       
1.1 All pages of the bidder’s tender should be sequentially numbered (including any annexes and supporting documents). 

1.2 Bidders are advised to submit tenders by email to tenders@londoncouncils.gov.uk quoting reference R1217b.
1.3 The tender must not arrive later than the date and time stipulated. Tenders received after that time may not be considered unless the bidder can prove that the tender was dispatched in sufficient time to meet the deadline.

1.4 By submitting a tender, the bidder agrees to keep that tender open for acceptance by London Councils for 90 days following the closing date.

1.5 London Councils does not accept suppliers’ Terms and Conditions. 

2. Amendments to Tender Documents
2.1 Prior to the deadline, London Councils may modify the tender documents by amendments in writing. London Councils may extend the deadline for tenders to allow for significant amendments to be fully assessed and taken into account.

2.2 The bidder may modify the tender prior to the deadline for receipt by giving notice in writing or by email.

2.3 No tender may be modified after the deadline for receipt.

2.4 The contractor may not transfer, assign or sublet the contract, or any part thereof, without the prior written consent of London Councils. If such consent is given the contractor will remain liable for the performance of the contract in its entirely as if such assignment or sublet had not taken place.
3. Tender Charges
3.1 Charges must be in pounds sterling and be inclusive of all costs but can be exclusive of VAT.
3.2 Charges shall be fixed for the duration of the Contract and will not be subject to any variation unless detailed in the Contract document. 

3.3 London Councils shall not be liable for any costs incurred in the production of the tender submission.

4. Tender Evaluations
4.1 London Councils intends to commission the most economically advantageous tender and reserves the right to accept or reject all or any part of any tender.
4.2 London Councils does not bind itself to accept the lowest charged tender.
4.3 London Councils reserves the right to change the timing or any other aspect of the procurement process or to cancel the procurement process at any stage without prior notice. 
5. Intellectual property rights
5.1 All information provided by London Councils shall be treated by the Contractor as confidential except where prior written consent has been given by London Councils that such information may be disclosed. The dissemination of information within your organisation should be on a need-to-know basis.
5.2 All intellectual property rights arising from the work will reside with London Councils.
Annex Two: Example of cost structure

Example of cost table

Below is an example of a clear cost structure. Other cost breakdowns will be accepted; however a clear structure that will allow London Councils to easily assess value for money – including cost per stage and/or days/hours per person - should be used.
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Stage Three: Analysis and Reporting

for surveys insert total number of interviews
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